
 
TEXAS VETERANS LAND BOARD 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
November 13, 2025 

 

 

 

The Honorable Dawn Buckingham, M.D. 

Chair 

Mr. James Rothfelder 

Member 

Rear Admiral (Ret.) Judson Scott 

Member 

 

 

 
Tony Dale 

Executive Secretary 



 
 

 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL CALLED MEETING, TEXAS VETERANS LAND BOARD 

The Texas Veterans Land Board will conduct a special called meeting to be held in person on November 
13, 2025, at 2:00 P.M. at Stephen F. Austin Building, 1700 N. Congress Ave., Room 940A, in accordance 
with the Texas Government Code §551 (Open Meetings Act). 

Access to the meeting by members of the public will be published in advance in the Texas Register in 
accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. A link to access the meeting via video conference call will 
be posted on the Texas General Land Office's website on the morning of the meeting.  

Any member of the public who wishes to address the Veterans Land Board on a matter within the 
authority of the Veterans Land Board should indicate so at the start of the meeting or during any public 
comment period. 

AGENDA 

  
1. Call to order/roll call/quorum established. 

 
2. Citizen communication (Two Minutes each. No deliberations with the Board. The Board may 

respond only with factual statements, recitation of existing policy, and requests for an item to be 
placed on a future Agenda.) 

 
3. Approval of minutes from the October 28, 2025, Special Called Meeting of the VLB. 

 
4. Texas Veterans Cemeteries. 

a. Consideration and possible action to execute a contract to construct the expansion of the 
Central Texas State Veterans Cemetery in Killeen.  
 

5. Chair and Board Member Closing Comments. 
 

6. Adjournment.  
 

An unscheduled Closed Executive Session may be called to discuss any item on this posted agenda provided it is within one of 
the permitted categories under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  

The above agenda schedule represents an estimate of the order for the indicated items and is subject to change at any time. All 
agenda items are subject to final action by the Board. Separate agenda items may be combined and discussed together at the 
discretion of the Chair. Any final action, decision, or vote on a matter deliberated in Closed Executive Session shall be made in 
an open meeting pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. Certain information 



 

1701 Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701 | P.O. Box 12873, Austin, Texas 78711-2873 
1-800-252-8387 | www.vlb.texas.gov | Serving Texas Veterans for life. 

 

may be presented to and by the Board, under the headings of “Citizen Communications”, and “Board Comments” however, by 
law, the Board shall not discuss, deliberate, or vote upon such matters except that a statement of specific factual information, a 
recitation of existing policy, and deliberations concerning the placing of the subject on a subsequent agenda may take place. 
The General Counsel has approved the Executive Session Items on this agenda. 

 

 

ANTHONY W. DALE 
Executive Secretary 
 
 

http://www.vlb.texas.gov/


SPECIAL CALLED MEETING   MINUTES                   Oct 28, 2025 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

TEXAS VETERANS LAND BOARD 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
Tuesday, October 28, 2025, 10:00 A.M. 
1700 Congress Avenue, Room 170, Austin, TX 78701 
 

 
 
 

1. Call to order 
a. Chairwoman Buckingham called the meeting to order at 10:00 A.M. 
b. The Chair declared a quorum present. 

Members present were: 
Chairwoman Dawn Buckingham, M.D. 
Board Member James Rothfelder 
 
Also present: 
 Chief Clerk Jennifer Jones 
 Assistant Chief Clerk Adrian Piloto 

Executive Secretary Tony Dale 
Assistant Executive Secretary Darren Fitz Gerald 
General Counsel Jeff Gordon 

c. Invocation was led by Chaplain of the Day Chaplain (Major) Joe Reffner. 
2. Approval of the minutes from the regular Board meeting of August 5, 2025. Approved 

by unanimous consent. 

3. Citizen Communications.  No members of the public testified during citizen 
communications. 

4. Chair and Board Member Opening Comments. General comments made by the board.  

5. Recognition of the 79th Anniversary of the Texas Veterans Land Board. 

6. Consideration and possible action on adopting a resolution commemorating the 
Semiquincentennial 250th Anniversary of the Founding of the United States of America. 
Approved by unanimous consent. 
 

7. Veteran Land Board Bond Fund Management. 
 

a. Quarterly Veterans Land, Housing and Home Improvement Program Update for 
Fiscal Year 2025 4th Quarter. This is a non-action item, therefore no action taken. 
 

 



SPECIAL CALLED MEETING   MINUTES                   Oct 28, 2025 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

8. Veterans Land Board Land and Housing. 
 

a. Consideration and possible action to set aside bids received from the Online 
Bidding Forfeited Land Sale held September 2, 2025, to October 16, 2025, on 
any tract where the account holder is making an appeal. No appeals made, 
withdrawn by the Chair. 
 

b. Consideration and possible action to accept and award all qualified high bids 
received from the Online Bidding Forfeited Land Sale held September 2, 2025 to 
October 16, 2025. Motion was made by Mr. Rothfelder, and seconded by Chair 
Buckingham, to approve according to staff recommendations. The motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

c. Consideration and possible action on request to forfeit VLB delinquent land 
accounts and accounts involved in tax suits. Motion was made by Mr. Rothfelder, 
and seconded by Chair Buckingham, to approve according to staff 
recommendations. The motion carried unanimously.  

 

d. Consideration and possible action on request to Order for Sale land tracts that 
may be included in the next Online Bidding Forfeited Land Sale and to set the 
next Quarterly Electronic Forfeited Land Sale bidding period to begin December 
2, 2025, through January 15, 2026. Motion was made by Mr. Rothfelder, and 
seconded by Chair Buckingham, to approve according to staff recommendations. 
The motion carried unanimously.  

 
e. Consideration and possible action on delegation of authority to the Executive 

Secretary to raise the home loan maximum amount to match the Veterans 
Administration (VA) and Federal Housing Finance Agency (FHFA) limits. 
Motion was made by Mr. Rothfelder, and seconded by Chair Buckingham, to 
approve according to staff recommendations. The motion carried unanimously.  

 

f. Recognition of top lenders and loan officers for the 2025 Veterans Housing 
Assistance Loan Program. This is a non-action item, therefore no action was 
taken. 
 

9. Texas State Veterans Cemeteries. 
a. Report on Texas State Veterans Home Operations. This is a non-action item, 

therefore no action taken. 
 

 
10. Texas State Veterans Homes. 

a. Report on Texas State Veterans Home Operations. This is a non-action item, 
therefore no action was taken. 
 
 



SPECIAL CALLED MEETING   MINUTES                   Oct 28, 2025 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

b. FY25 annual report on collaboration with the Texas Veterans Commission on    
assisting Texas State Veterans Home Residents with VA Disability Claims. This is a 
non-action item, therefore no action was taken. 
 
c. Consideration and possible action to designate a location in Bexar County as the 

site of a Texas State Veteran Home Contingent upon a donation of land and 
delegation of authority to the Executive Secretary to accept a donation of land 
that is suitable for that purpose. Motion was made by Mr. Rothfelder, and 
seconded by Chair Buckingham, to approve according to staff recommendations. 
The motion carried unanimously.  

 
11. General Land Office Contract Management. 

a. Presentation and discussion on the Annual Report of VLB Contracts & Major 
Contracts. This is a non-action item, therefore no action taken. 

 
12.  VLB Marketing 

a. Annual Report on VLB Marketing and Outreach Activities and Texas Veterans 
Call Center operations. This is a non-action item, therefore no action taken. 

 
13. Internal Audit 

a. Presentation of Fiscal Year 2026 Audit Plan and related matters. This is a non-
action item, therefore no action taken. 
 

14. Construction Services 
a. Report on warranty issues related to the Tuskegee Airmen Texas State Veterans 
Home in Fort Worth. This is a non-action item, therefore no action taken. 
 

15. Executive Secretary Report 
a. Annual Report on the FY25 Operational Plan. This is a non-action item, therefore 
no action taken. 
b. Report on Veterans Land Board operations. This is a non-action item, therefore no 
action was taken. 
 

16. Chair and Board Member Closing Comments. General comments made by the board. 
 
17. Adjournment. 11:08 A.M. 
 

 
 

ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 

_____________________     ____________________ 
Anthony Dale                             James Rothfelder 

            Executive Secretary                                                                Board Member 



 

1 
 

 
Date:    November 13, 2025 
  
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman  

James Rothfelder, Member 
Judson Scott, Member  
  

  
From:    Tony Dale, Executive Secretary  
  
Subject:  Agenda Item 4 a - Consideration and possible action to execute a 

construction services contract for the expansion of the Central Texas 
State Veterans Cemetery in Killeen  

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board approve a construction services contract for 
the expansion of the Central Texas State Veterans Cemetery in Killeen.  

  
Summary  
Pursuant to Board authority under the Texas Natural Resources Code, §164.005, Staff seeks 
approval to enter into a construction services contract with Emerson Construction Company, 
Inc. for the planned Phase 3 – Crypts and Columbarium Expansion (“Expansion”) at the Central 
Texas State Veterans Cemetery in Killeen (“Cemetery”). 
 
In September 2025, the U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs (“VA”) awarded a grant for the 
Expansion to increase the number of columbarium niches and burial crypts to honor Texas 
Veterans.  In addition, it will include a new committal shelter, a Space Force flagpole and 
service seals, and various structural and site improvements.  This project will add 4,700 pre-
positioned crypts, 4,000 columbaria niches, 2,700 in-ground cremated remains plots, a second 
committal shelter, integrate Space Force, and install all necessary grading, irrigation, drainage 
and roads.  
 
The value of the contract is $14,393,000. The anticipated time period to perform the work is 
approximately 580 days. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	.1 Board Binder cover sheet
	1 VLB Board Agenda November 13 2025 Special Called Meeting 
	Agenda Item 3 VLB Minutes from Oct 28, 2025
	Agenda Item 4 a - Consideration to execute a contract to construct the expansion of the Central Texas State Veterans Cemetery

